
PIKES PEAK LIBRARY DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
December 7, 2022        4 pm 

            Providing resources and opportunities that 
            impact individual lives and build community 

LIBRARY 21C – MAKE SPACE 
VIRTUAL MEETING (ZOOM)  
Call in:   1-253-215-8782 or 1-312-626-6799 or 1-669-900-6833 or 1-346-248-7799
Meeting ID: 883 8779 8379 
Passcode:  730852 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
AND 2023 BUDGET WORK SESSION 

I. CALL TO ORDER

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

III. ITEMS TOO LATE FOR THE AGENDA

IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (3 Minute Time Limit per Person)

V. BUSINESS ITEMS
A. Consent Items

Consent items shall be acted upon as a whole unless a specific item is called for discussion.
Any item called for discussion shall be acted upon separately as “New Business”.

1. Minutes of the November 16, 2022 Budget Hearing work session Meeting (p. 2) 
2. Minutes of the November 16, 2022 meeting (p. 4) 

B. Unfinished Business
1. Decision 22-12-1: URA City Gate 2.0 (Weidner) 
2. Decision 22-12-2: 2022 Budget adjustment  (p. 8) 
3. Work Session: 2023 Original Adopted Budget (p. 9) 
4. Decision 22-12-3: 2023 Original Adopted Budget 

C. New Business
1. Interim Chief Librarian and CEO update: Material Reconsideration (p. 24) 

VI. ADJOURNMENT

The full packet of materials for this meeting of the Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees is available at 
https://ppld.org/board-trustees 

Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

1 of 43

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88387798379?pwd=UUNSRkZzYlJLS2MzWUFYSEFwbGpQZz09
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88387798379?pwd=UUNSRkZzYlJLS2MzWUFYSEFwbGpQZz09
https://ppld.org/board-trustees


 
 
PIKES PEAK LIBRARY DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
November 16, 2022        2 pm 
                 Cultivate spaces for belonging, 
                         personal growth, and strong communities 
LIBRARY 21C – MAKE SPACE 
VIRTUAL MEETING (ZOOM)  
Call in:   1-253-215-8782 or 1-312-626-6799 or 1-669-900-6833 or 1-346-248-7799 
Meeting ID:  883 8779 8379 
Passcode:  730852 
 
President Dr. Ned Stoll. Vice President Scott Taylor, Secretary/Treasurer Dora Gonzales, Erin Bents, Debbie English, Mina 
Liebert, Aaron Salt  
 
Interim Chief Librarian and CEO Teona Shainidze Krebs, Director of Public Relations & Marketing Denise Abbott, Video 
Producer/Director Drew Cerino, Executive Assistant Laura Foster, Chief Information Technology Officer Justin Goodwin, Chief 
Financial Officer Randy Green, Chief Development Officer and Foundation Executive Officer Lance James, Friends of the Pikes 
Peak Library District Board of Directors President Rita Jordan, Chief Human Resources and Organizational Development 
Officer Heather Laslie, Director of Regional History & Genealogy Brett Lobello, Director of Equity, Diversity, and Inclusion 
Shirley Martinez, Chief Communications Officer Michelle Ray, Interim Chief Public Services Officer and Deputy Chief Librarian 
Tammy Sayles, Director of the Southeast Region Abby Simpson, Chief Facilities Management Officer Gary Syling, Internal 
Communications Specialist Jeremiah Walter 

 
 

BUDGET HEARING WORK SESSION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

CALL TO ORDER  
President Dr. Ned Stoll called the Budget Hearing Work Session of the Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees to order at 
2:05 pm. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ITEMS TOO LATE FOR THE AGENDA 
There were no items too late for the agenda. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT (3 Minute Time Limit per Person) 
There was no public comment. 

 
BUSINESS ITEMS 

New Business  
Discussion: 2023 Original Adopted Budget 
Chief Financial Officer Randy Green introduced Finance consultant, Nicola Sapp, and thanked her for all her  
help and guidance. 
The 2023 preliminary budget is around $39 million 

• Unknown at this time what the impact of the passage of Proposition FF will have on the E-rate 
program. Proposition FF goes into effect July 1, 2023.  

• URA commitments are deferred from the total budget before applying the TABOR calculation. 
• Population growth does not equate to per capita growth. 
• $500k included for a Facilities Master Plan consultant. 

 
The budget includes the use of approximately $3 million of the fund balance. The Board asked to see  
scenarios of using $2.5 million, $2.0 million, and $1.5 million of the fund balance. The Board will consider  
reducing the Collection Management budget (currently at 13%) as far as 10%. 
 

Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

2 of 43

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88387798379?pwd=UUNSRkZzYlJLS2MzWUFYSEFwbGpQZz09
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88387798379?pwd=UUNSRkZzYlJLS2MzWUFYSEFwbGpQZz09


The Board suggested starting the presentation with an overview of the budget first, followed by the details.  
The new format is easy to read and understand.   
Resolutions will be available for signature when the Board votes. 
The December 7 meeting will include a work session for the budget.  
A vote of the Board of Trustees must take place no later than December 7. 
Including a line item that reduces the total budget is allowable for the Board to vote. Detail on how that  
reduction will be achieved can be determined once the budget is approved. 
 

ADJOURNMENT  
 

There being no further business to discuss, President Dr. Ned Stoll adjourned the meeting at 4:49 pm. 
 
 
 

Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

3 of 43



 
 
PIKES PEAK LIBRARY DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
November 16, 2022        5 pm 
                 Cultivate spaces for belonging, 
                         personal growth, and strong communities 
LIBRARY 21C – MAKE SPACE 
VIRTUAL MEETING (ZOOM)  
Call in:   1-253-215-8782 or 1-312-626-6799 or 1-669-900-6833 or 1-346-248-7799 
Meeting ID:  883 8779 8379 
Passcode:  730852 

 
President Dr. Ned Stoll. Vice President Scott Taylor, Secretary/Treasurer Dora Gonzales, Erin Bents, Debbie English, Aaron 
Salt 
 
Interim Chief Librarian and CEO Teona Shainidze Krebs, Family & Children’s Services Director Melody Alvarez, Video 
Producer/Director Drew Cerino, Executive Assistant Laura Foster, Chief Information Technology Officer Justin Goodwin, Chief 
Financial Officer Randy Green, East Library Manager Gigi Holman, Chief Development Officer and Foundation Executive 
Officer Lance James, Friends of the Pikes Peak Library District Board of Directors President Rita Jordan, Chief Human 
Resources and Organizational Development Officer Heather Laslie, Director of Regional History & Genealogy Brett Lobello, 
Collection Management Director Jenny Pierce, Chief Communications Officer Michelle Ray, Interim Chief Public Services 
Officer and Deputy Chief Librarian Tammy Sayles, Sand Creek Library Manager Sara Sharples, Chief Facilities Management 
Officer Gary Syling, Internal Communications Specialist Jeremiah Walter, Mobile Library Manager Lisa Ward, Western Museum 
of Mining and Industry Executive Director Grant Dewey, Stephanie Edwards, County Commissioner Carrie Geitner, Kevin 
Jussel, Laura Neuman, David Neville, John Olson, Ray O’Sullivan, Samuel Small, Executive Director of the Colorado Springs 
Urban Renewal Authority (CSURA) Jariah Walker, County Commissioner Holly Williams 
 
Absent: Mina Liebert  

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

CALL TO ORDER  
President Dr. Ned Stoll called the November 16, 2022 regular meeting of the Board of Trustees to order at 5:01 p.m. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ITEMS TOO LATE FOR THE AGENDA 
Scott Taylor asked that the roles and responsibilities of the CEO Selection Committee be added to the agenda. President Dr. 
Stoll stated that the Committee is not prepared to discuss this topic today, and this will be discussed at the December 7, 2022 
meeting.  
 
PRESENTATIONS 

Western Museum of Mining and Industry (WMMI) 
Executive Director Grant Dewey presented the idea of establishing a multi-use campus at the Western Museum of 
Mining and Industry. WMMI is interested in discussing space for PPLD onsite and continues to discuss options with 
other partners. The WMMI property is located in El Paso county. 

 
The Board thanked Executive Director Grant Dewey for his presentation and the interest to include PPLD in their  
vision. Despite PPLD’s interest in further discussing a partnership, PPLD is unable to make a written commitment at  
this time.  

 
PUBLIC COMMENT (3 Minute Time Limit per Person) 
There was no public comment. 
 
BUSINESS ITEMS 

Consent Items  
Minutes of the October 19, 2022 Meeting  

Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

4 of 43

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88387798379?pwd=UUNSRkZzYlJLS2MzWUFYSEFwbGpQZz09
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88387798379?pwd=UUNSRkZzYlJLS2MzWUFYSEFwbGpQZz09


 
Motion: Scott Taylor made a motion that the Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees  

   approve the minutes of the October 19, 2022 meeting as presented. 
 
Second: Aaron Salt seconded the motion. 
Vote:     The vote was approved unanimously.     

 
Unfinished Business 

Decision 22-11-1:  Strategic Plan  
 
Interim Chief Librarian and CEO Teona Shainidze Krebs presented the updated Strategic Plan. The words ‘Continue   
to’ will be removed from the Staff Area of Focus. 

 
Motion: Aaron Salt made a motion to approve the 2023-2025 Strategic Plan as amended.  
 
Second: Scott Taylor seconded the motion. 
Vote:     The motion was approved unanimously. 
 

New Business  
 
Decision 22-11-2:  URA City Gate 2.0 (Weidner) 

  Executive Director of the Colorado Springs Urban Renewal Authority (CSURA) Jariah Walker introduced  
Sarah Dunmire and Laura Neuman, representing Weidner Apartment Homes. Phase One is in progress,  
however, the completion of Phases Two and Three would be at risk without the support of PPLD. 

 
Motion: Debbie English made a motion to approve the URA City Gate 2.0 (Weidner Apartment  

   Homes) project as presented. 
 
Second: Scott Taylor seconded the motion. 
Vote:     President Dr. Ned Stoll asked for a vote by roll call: 

   Erin Bents – no 
    Debbie English – yes 
    Scott Taylor – yes 
    Dora Gonzales – no 
    Aaron Salt – no 
    Dr. Ned Stoll – yes 

   With three members voting yes, three members voting no, and one member absent, the  
   motion does not pass three to three.  

 
Decision 22-11-3:  URA Gold Hill Mesa Commercial (Jariah Walker) 

  Executive Director of the Colorado Springs Urban Renewal Authority (CSURA) Jariah Walker introduced  
Stephanie Edwards, Kevin Jussel, John Olson, Sam Small who represent Gold Hill Mesa Commercial. 
 

Motion: Erin Bents made a motion to approve the URA Gold Hill Mesa Commercial as presented. 
 
Second: Debbie English seconded the motion. 
Vote:  Erin Bents – yes 
  Debbie English - yes 

     Scott Taylor – yes 
     Dr. Ned Stoll – yes 
     Dora Gonzales – yes 
     Aaron Salt - yes 

  With six members voting yes and one member absent, the motion passes six to zero. 
 

Decision 22-11-4:  Circulation policy  
The recommendation to change the use of the term Library to PPLD throughout the policy has been made.  

Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

5 of 43



 
Motion: Scott Taylor made a motion to approve the Circulation policy as amended. 
 
Second: Aaron Salt seconded the motion. 
Vote:     The motion was approved unanimously. 
 

Decision 22-11-5:  Legal Reference policy 
Minor grammatical changes, including changing the use of the term Library to PPLD throughout the policy, will  
be made.  

 
Motion: Aaron Salt made a motion to approve the Legal Reference policy as amended. 
 
Second: Scott Taylor seconded the motion. 
Vote:    The motion was approved unanimously. 
 

Decision 22-11-6:  Kitchen Use policy 
This new policy will include the use of the Kitchen in programming other than the Food Industry Training (FIT)  
program. The Board of Trustees requested the inclusion of a liability clause. 
 
 Motion:  Scott Taylor made a motion to revise the policy and return to a future Board meeting for  

approval. 
 
 Second:  Debbie English seconded the motion. 
 Vote: The motion was approved unanimously.  

 
Presentation and Discussion:  Colorado FAMLI Program (Heather Laslie) 
Chief Human Resources and Organizational Development Officer Heather Laslie provided details of this new 
state program that would provide leave for employees. Ms. Laslie surveyed several eligible organizations and 
learned that many have chosen to opt out of the program at this time. This program can be returned for a vote 
in the future if needed.  
Decision 22-11-7: The Board of Trustees decided to proceed with voting today. 
. 

Motion: Aaron Salt made a motion to opt out of the Colorado FAMLI program at this time. 
 
Second: Scott Taylor seconded the motion., 
Vote:   The motion was approved unanimously. 

 
Presentation and Discussion:  Budget Adjustment 
Chief Financial Officer Randy Green presented the adjustment to the 2022 approved budget. A vote on this  
adjustment will be brought to a vote at the December 7, 2022, meeting.  
 

REPORTS 
Friends of the Pikes Peak Library District Report 
The Friends of the Pikes Peak Library District Board of Directors Report was included in the board packet. Friends of  
the Pikes Peak Library District Board of Directors President Rita Jordan announced that revenue from the Friends Fall  
Booksale was the highest ever recorded. The Friends have approved updated Bylaws and are reviewing the Friends  
Mission and Value statements. A Meet the Author event is scheduled for December 17 at East Library. Proceeds  
from this sale will benefit the Friends of the Pikes Peak Library District. 

 
Pikes Peak Library District Foundation Report  
The Pikes Peak Library District Foundation report was included in the packet 

 
Financial Report: October 2022 
Chief Financial Officer Randy Green presented the October 2022 financial report. PPLD experienced a 4.4% growth on  
revenue during 2022. The Year-to-Date expenditures are at 96.4% of the actual budget.  

 

Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

6 of 43



Public Services Report 
The Public Services Report was included in the board packet. Interim Chief Public Services Officer and Deputy Chief  
Librarian Tammy Sayles highlighted a partnership with the School for the Deaf and Blind for an internship with PPLD. 

     
Support Services Reports:  Communications Report, Facilities Report, Human Resources Report 
The Support Services Reports were included in the board packet. A Security report will be provided for the January 
2023 meeting. Board members enjoy reading the weekly internal staff newsletter, the Bookmark. PPLD continues to fill 
open positions, however staff turnover remains high. The use of temporary staff can be more expensive and is rarely 
done at PPLD. 

.  
Interim Chief Librarian’s Report 
Interim Chief Librarian and CEO Teona Shainidze Krebs met with School District 11 Superintendent Michael Gaal to  
discuss partnership ideas. Ms. Shainidze Krebs also recently met with County Commissioner Holly Williams and  
County Commissioner Cami Bremer. And attended the State of the Region address. The 2023-2025 Strategic Plan will  
be launched with staff in early December.  

 
Board Reports  

 
Governance Committee Report  
Governance Committee Chair Dora Gonzales shared that the Governance Committee met on November 1,  
2022. The discussion included that the Bylaws are under Attorney review, and that interviews for Board  
applicants will take place on November 17, 2022. Interim Chief Librarian and CEO Teona Shainidze Krebs  
provided an update on her goals, and Dr. Stoll discussed the Selection Committee for Chief Librarian and  
CEO. 

 
Internal Affairs Committee Report 
Internal Affairs Chair Debbie English shared that the Internal Affairs Committee met on November 1, 2022.  
Decisions made in today’s meeting and a change in presentation of Urban Renewal Authority (URA) projects  
were discussed. 

 
Public Affairs Committee Report 
The Public Affairs Committee did not meet in November 2022. 

 
Trustee Update 
Aaron Salt enjoyed attending the naturalization ceremony at Library 21c.  
Scott Taylor attended the Food Industry Training (FIT) graduation, and thanked Chef Scott Crum for doing an  
excellent job. Mr. Taylor invited Dora Gonzales and Interim Chief Public Services Director and Deputy Chief  
Librarian Tammy Sayles to attend a Classical Conversations  

 
Board President’s Report 
Board President Dr. Ned Stoll spoke of attending a Veteran’s Day presentation that included a five-star flag  
representing the service of five members of his family.  

 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
There being no further business to discuss, President Dr. Ned Stoll adjourned the November 16, 2022 meeting of the Pikes 
Peak Library District Board of Trustees at 7:18 pm 

 
The full packet of materials for this meeting of the Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees is available at 

https://ppld.org/board-trustees 

Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

7 of 43

https://ppld.org/board-trustees


Pikes Peak Library District
General Fund - Supplemental Budget
Fiscal Year 2022

Category Amount

Approved 2022 Budget - Revenues 38,371,316$             

Adjustments:  

    Investment income 150,000                    
    Specific ownership taxes (300,000)                   
    Federal - Erate Funding (405,000)                   
    Parking lot collections (7,000)                      
    Copier/printer collections (15,000)                    

    Grants/Designated Funds

            ARPA grant through Colorado Department of Education (Self Check Security Gates) 208,375                    
            Buell grant 30,000                      
            Next 50 Grant 100,000                    
            Colorado Springs Health Foundation - Peer Navigator Proof of Concept Grant (1 of 3 years) 111,078                    
            Independence Center Grant - Library 21C ADA Upgrades 25,990                      
            Can'd Aid Foundation - Recycling equipment and consulting grant 10,484                      
            Workforce Center Grants - Food Industry Kitchen Equipment 22,899                      
            IMLS Grant - Digital Archiving equipment & personnel (1 of 2 years) 56,299                      

               Total Grants/Designated Funds 565,125                    

        Total Adjustments (11,875)                    

                     2022 General Fund Revenue Budget, As Amended 38,359,441$             

Approved 2022 Budget - Expenditures 39,927,994$             

  Utilization of Prior Year Reserved and Designated Fund Balance

    Encumbrances

        Library materials 134,756                    

        Other encumbrances 171,806                    

            Total Encumbrances 306,562                    

    Other Items

        Operating transfer - ISF-Employee Health Plan (Additional anticipated Claims Incurred & Administrative Fees) 400,000                    

        Operating transfer - East Library Project Fund (Roof Replacement, net of Insurance Proceeds) 204,738                    

        Operating transfer - Library 21C Fund - Remove Food Industry Kitchen Equipment costs (22,899)                    

        Operating transfer - Capital Reserve Fund (Self Check Security Gates) 481,113                    

        Operating transfer - Capital Reserve Fund (Self Check Security Gates-Pymt Terminal & Panel) 35,427                      

             Total Operating Transfers 1,098,379                 

    Grants/Designated Funds

            ARPA grant through Colorado Department of Education (Self Check Security Gates) 208,375                    
            Buell grant 30,000                      
            Next 50 Grant 100,000                    
            Colorado Springs Health Foundation - Peer Navigator Proof of Concept Grant (1 of 3 years) 111,078                    
            Independence Center Grant - Library 21C ADA Upgrades 25,990                      
            Can'd Aid Foundation - Recycling equipment and consulting grant 10,484                      
            Workforce Center Grants - Food Industry Kitchen Equipment 22,899                      
            IMLS Grant - Digital Archiving equipment & personnel (1 of 2 years) 56,299                      

               Total Grants/Designated Funds 565,125                    

        Vacant position savings (1,155,087)                

            Total Other Items 508,417                    

            Total Adjustments 814,979                    

                     2020 General Fund Expenditure Budget, As Amended 40,742,973               

Excess Revenues Over (Less Than) Expenditures (2,383,532)                

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 11,878,110               

Fund Balance - End of Year 9,494,578$               

Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

8 of 43



2023 Original Adopted Budget 

Budget Hearing # 2

December 7, 2022

Budget Balancing Options

Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

9 of 43



Page 1 *Updated* Budget Summary

Page 2 Fund Balance Projection

Page 3 *Updated* Five Year Budget Forecast (before Board Direction on Budget Changes) 

Page 4 Budget Forecast - What If…....

Page 5 Budget Forecast - What If…....

Page 6 Budget Balancing OPTION 1   ~ Management Recommended

Page 7 Option 1 Explanations

Page 8 Budget Balancing OPTION 2

Page 9 Option 2 Explanations

Page 10 Budget Balancing OPTION 3

Page 11-12 Option 3 Explanations

Page 13 Budget Balancing OPTIONS Summary (correlation to Budget Resolutions)

2023 Original Adopted Budget

Budget Balancing Options

Table of Contents

Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

10 of 43



General Fund Capital Fund Self-Insurance Fund

TOTAL 

BUDGET

REVENUES

Property Taxes (2) 28,373,442 2,370,464 3,029,193 33,773,099

Specific ownership taxes 3,500,000 0 0 3,500,000

Interest on taxes 38,250 0 0 38,250

Payment in lieu of taxes 10,200 0 0 10,200

Total taxes 31,921,892 2,370,464 3,029,193 37,321,549

Intergovernmental (1) 907,543 35,798 0 943,341

Fines and fees 67,500 0 0 67,500

Interest income 38,250 0 0 38,250

Donations/fundraising 200,000 0 0 200,000

Employee contributions 0 0 612,143 612,143

Miscellaneous - Copy sales 45,225 0 0 45,225

Miscellaneous - Parking lot collections 10,050 0 0 10,050

Miscellaneous - Other 4,523 0 0 4,523

     Total Revenue 33,194,983 2,406,262 3,641,336 39,242,581

EXPENSES

Personnel Expense 21,989,076 0 3,298,098 25,287,174

Operating Expense 14,282,497 0 290,000 14,572,497

Capital Outlay 35,798 2,405,985 0 2,441,783

     Total Expense 36,307,371 2,405,985 3,588,098 42,301,454

Net change in fund balance (3,112,388) 277 53,238 (3,058,873)

Fund balance, beginning of year 10,151,900 5,062,281 99,692 15,313,873

Fund balance, end of year 7,039,512 5,062,558 152,930 12,255,000

This is provided as a reference from Budget Hearing #1

There are only two changes from the November Budget Hearing:

  1) Restricted funds of $35,798 were added in the Capital Fund

  2) Property Tax Revenue was increased by $93,733 to $33,773,099 based on the Final Assessment

2023 BUDGET SUMMARY

2023 OAB BUDGET SUMMARY PAGE 1Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

11 of 43



12/31/2021 12/31/2021 12/31/2022 12/31/2023

 Audited Fund 

Balances 

2022 Projected 

Impacts
Projected Fund 

Balance

2023 Budget 

Impacts

Projected Fund 

Balance

Nonspendable 400,575                  0 400,575              0 400,575                 

Restricted Fund Balance 1,392,473                0 1,392,473            0 1,392,473              

Restricted General Fund 1,793,048                0 1,793,048            0 1,793,048              

Assigned 306,562                  0 306,562              0 306,562                 

Unassigned (1) 11,228,870              (1,383,532) 9,845,338            (3,112,388) 6,732,950              

Unrestricted General Fund 11,535,432              (1,383,532) 10,151,900           (3,112,388) 7,039,512              

General Fund 13,328,480              (1,383,532) 11,944,948          (3,112,388) 8,832,560              

Special Revenue Fund 100,688                   (38,464) 62,224                0 62,224                  

Capital Projects -North 315,403                   54,841 370,244              277 370,521                 

Capital Projects -East 90,178                     91,187 181,365               0 181,365                 

Capital Projects -Penrose 342,977                  410,190 753,167               0 753,167                 

Capital Reserve 3,477,782                279,723 3,757,505            0 3,757,505              

Capital 4,226,340                835,941 5,062,281            277 5,062,558              

Self- Insurance 313,188                   (213,496) 99,692                53,238 152,930                 

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 17,968,696              (799,551) 17,169,145           (3,058,873) 14,110,272             

Less: Restricted & Special Revenue (1,893,736)              0 (1,855,272)          0 (1,855,272)             

NET FUND BALANCE 16,074,960              (799,551)             15,313,873          (3,058,873)       12,255,000            

Less: Cash Flow Needs (2) (4,000,000)              0 (5,500,000)          0 (5,500,000)            

AVAILABLE FUND BALANCE 12,074,960              (799,551)             9,813,873            (3,058,873)       6,755,000              

Two changes have been incorporated into this Fund Balance Projection: 

  1) Projected Impacts to the 2022 Activity have been improved by $1M based on updated Attrition Projections through the end of the year 

  2) Based on analysis, $5.5M is needed for Cashflow Reserve and has been taken out of  the "Available Fund Balance "

PROJECTED FUND BALANCES

2023 OAB FUND BALANCE PAGE 2Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

12 of 43



2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

REVENUES

Property Taxes (5%) 33,773,099 35,461,754 37,234,842 39,096,584 41,051,413

Specific ownership taxes (3%) 3,500,000 3,605,000 3,713,150 3,824,545 3,939,281

Interest on taxes 38,250 38,250 38,250 38,250 38,250

Payment in lieu of taxes (5%) 10,200 10,710 11,246 11,808 12,398

Total taxes 37,321,549 39,115,714 40,997,487 42,971,186 45,041,342

Intergovernmental (3%) 943,341 971,641 1,000,790 1,030,814 1,061,739

Fines and fees (5%) 67,500 70,875 74,419 78,140 82,047

Interest income 38,250 38,250 38,250 38,250 38,250

Employee contributions (5%0 612,143 642,750 674,888 708,632 744,064

Donations/fundraising 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000

   Copy sales (5%) 45,225 47,486 49,861 52,354 54,971

   Parking lot collections (5%) 10,050 10,553 11,080 11,634 12,216

   Other 4,523 4,523 4,523 4,523 4,523

Other Revenue 1,921,032 1,986,078 2,053,811 2,124,347 2,197,809

     Total Revenue 39,242,581 41,101,792 43,051,298 45,095,533 47,239,151

EXPENSES

GF- Personnel Expense (3%) 21,989,076 22,648,749 23,328,211 24,028,058 24,748,899

GF- Operating Expense (3%) 14,318,295 14,747,844 15,190,279 15,645,987 16,115,367

ISF- Medical Claims (10%) 3,588,098 3,946,908 4,341,599 4,775,758 5,253,334

CIP- Capital Projects 2,405,985 2,405,985 2,405,985 2,405,985 2,405,985

     Total expense 42,301,454 43,749,485 45,266,074 46,855,788 48,523,586

Net change in fund balance (3,058,873) (2,647,693) (2,214,776) (1,760,256) (1,284,435)

Fund balance, beginning of year ~ General Fund 10,151,900

Fund balance, beginning of year ~Self-Insurance 99,692

Fund balance, beginning of year ~ Capital 5,062,281

LESS: Cashflows (5,500,000)

Available Beginning Fund Balance 9,813,873 6,755,000 4,107,306 1,892,530 132,274

Projected Rolling Fund Balance 6,755,000 4,107,306 1,892,530 132,274 (1,152,160)

This is the original five year forecast updated to include:

*Updated revenue estimates 

*Updated Fund balances with the addition of the Needed Cashflow Reserve 

PROJECTED ~ FIVE YEAR FORECAST   **BEFORE BOARD BUDGET CHANGES**

2023 OAB BUDGET FORECAST PAGE 3Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

13 of 43



2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

REVENUES

Tax Revenues 37,321,549 39,115,714 40,997,487 42,971,186 45,041,342

Potential TABOR Changes - Voter Approved 0 1,500,000 4,000,000 5,500,000 8,000,000

Total Tax Revenue 37,321,549 40,615,714 44,997,487 48,471,186 53,041,342

Other Revenue 1,921,032 1,986,078 2,053,811 2,124,347 2,197,809

     Total Revenue 39,242,581 42,601,792 47,051,298 50,595,533 55,239,151

EXPENSES

GF- Personnel Expense (3%) 21,989,076 22,648,749 23,328,211 24,028,058 24,748,899

GF- Operating Expense (3%) 14,318,295 14,747,844 15,190,279 15,645,987 16,115,367

Invest in Ballot Measure 500,000 0 0 0 0

ISF- Medical Claims (10%) 3,588,098 3,946,908 4,341,599 4,775,758 5,253,334

CIP- Capital Projects 2,405,985 2,405,985 2,405,985 2,405,985 2,405,985

     Total expense 42,801,454 43,749,485 45,266,074 46,855,788 48,523,586

Net change in fund balance (3,558,873) (1,147,693) 1,785,224 3,739,744 6,715,565

Available Beginning Fund Balance 9,813,873 6,255,000 5,107,306 6,892,530 10,632,274

Projected Rolling Fund Balance 6,255,000 5,107,306 6,892,530 10,632,274 17,347,840

*This is an illustration of how a DE-TABOR Ballot Measure approved by voters in 2023 

   would impact the Five Year Forecast. 

*This retains the current OAB as presented in November. 

WHAT HAPPENS IF….....

DE- TABOR  REQUEST (and voter approval)  IN 2023

2023 OAB BUDGET FORECAST PAGE 4Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

14 of 43



2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

REVENUES

Tax Revenues 37,321,549 39,115,714 40,997,487 42,971,186 45,041,342

Potential TABOR Changes - Voter Approved 0 0 2,500,000 4,000,000 6,500,000

Total Tax Revenue 37,321,549 39,115,714 43,497,487 46,971,186 51,541,342

Other Revenue 1,921,032 1,986,078 2,053,811 2,124,347 2,197,809

     Total Revenue 39,242,581 41,101,792 45,551,298 49,095,533 53,739,151

EXPENSES

GF- Personnel Expense (3%) 21,989,076 22,648,749 23,328,211 24,028,058 24,748,899

GF- Operating Expense (3%) 14,318,295 14,747,844 15,190,279 15,645,987 16,115,367

Invest in Ballot Measure 0 500,000 0 0 0

ISF- Medical Claims (10%) 3,588,098 3,946,908 4,341,599 4,775,758 5,253,334

CIP- Capital Projects 2,405,985 2,405,985 2,405,985 2,405,985 2,405,985

     Total expense 42,301,454 44,249,485 45,266,074 46,855,788 48,523,586

Net change in fund balance (3,058,873) (3,147,693) 285,224 2,239,744 5,215,565

Available Beginning Fund Balance 9,813,873 6,755,000 3,607,306 3,892,530 6,132,274

Projected Rolling Fund Balance 6,755,000 3,607,306 3,892,530 6,132,274 11,347,840

*This is an illustration of how a DE-TABOR Ballot Measure approved by voters in 2024

   would impact the Five Year Forecast. 

*This retains the current OAB as presented in November. 

WHAT HAPPENS IF….....

DE- TABOR  REQUEST (and voter approval)  IN 2024

2023 OAB BUDGET FORECAST PAGE 5Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

15 of 43



2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

REVENUES

Tax Revenues 37,321,549 39,115,714 40,997,487 42,971,186 45,041,342

1 ~ Potential TABOR Changes - Voter Approved 0 0 1,500,000 4,000,000 5,500,000

Total Tax Revenue 37,321,549 39,115,714 42,497,487 46,971,186 50,541,342

Other Revenue 1,921,032 1,986,078 2,053,811 2,124,347 2,197,809

     Total Revenue 39,242,581 41,101,792 44,551,298 49,095,533 52,739,151

EXPENSES

GF- Personnel Expense (3%) 21,989,076 22,648,749 23,328,211 24,028,058 24,748,899

2 ~ Utilize Existing Attrition Savings (440,000) (440,000) (250,000) 0 0

GF- Operating Expense (3%) 14,318,295 14,747,844 15,190,279 15,645,987 16,115,367

3 ~ Invest in Ballot Measure 0 500,000 0 0 0

ISF- Medical Claims (10%) 3,588,098 3,946,908 4,341,599 4,775,758 5,253,334

CIP- Capital Projects 2,405,985 2,405,985 2,405,985 2,405,985 2,405,985

4 ~ Delay Capital Projects (1,405,985) (800,000) (800,000) 0 0

     Total expense 40,455,469 43,009,485 44,216,074 46,855,788 48,523,586

Net change in fund balance (1,212,888) (1,907,693) 335,224 2,239,744 4,215,565

Available Beginning Fund Balance 9,813,873 10,100,985 8,193,291 8,528,515 10,768,259

5 ~ Increase Available Cashflow 1,500,000

Projected Rolling Fund Balance 10,100,985 8,193,291 8,528,515 10,768,259 14,983,825

*See Budget Balancing explanation on next page 

**Maintains a $4M Cashflow Reserve in addition to the Restricted Reserves of $1.8M 

OPTION 1 - BUDGET BALANCING 

Delay Capital Projects, Utilize Existing Attrition Savings, DE- TABOR request in 2024

***Management Recommended***

2023 OAB BUDGET BALANCING OPTIONS PAGE 6Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

16 of 43



* This Option is recommended by Management because it is proactive in addressing the imposed revenue limits due to TABOR.  It reduces

the base budget by $1.8M by utilizing existing attrition savings and delaying Capital Projects without reducing any programs or services

1 ~ In this option, PPLD would request a DE-TABOR Ballot measure in 2024 to eliminate the on-going and cumulative loss of core revenue 

2 ~ Extensive analysis on attrition savings, due to turnover and unfilled positions, results in an additional $440,000 of attrition savings that

  can be captured without reducing any current programs or services

3 ~ One-time expense for the investment in a DE-TABOR Ballot Measure

4 ~ Includes delay of certain Capital Projects that would not impact operations or result in increased future cost

5 ~ The reduction to the base budget of $1.8M alleviates related monthly cashflow burden and allows for an additional $1.5M of one-time fund 

 balance to be used for balancing future budget years

2023 Original Adopted Budget

Budget Balancing Options

Option 1 Explanation

2023 OAB 

BUDGET BALANCING OPTIONS

PAGE 7Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

17 of 43



2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

REVENUES

Tax Revenues 37,321,549 39,115,714 40,997,487 42,971,186 45,041,342

1 ~ Potential TABOR Changes - Voter Approved 0 0 0 0 0

Total Tax Revenue 37,321,549 39,115,714 40,997,487 42,971,186 45,041,342

Other Revenue 1,921,032 1,986,078 2,053,811 2,124,347 2,197,809

     Total Revenue 39,242,581 41,101,792 43,051,298 45,095,533 47,239,151

EXPENSES

GF- Personnel Expense (3%) 21,989,076 22,648,749 23,328,211 24,028,058 24,748,899

2 ~ Utilize Existing Attrition Savings (440,000) (440,000) (250,000) 0 0

GF- Operating Expense (3%) 14,318,295 14,747,844 15,190,279 15,645,987 16,115,367

3 ~ Invest in Ballot Measure 0 0 0 0 0

ISF- Medical Claims (10%) 3,588,098 3,946,908 4,341,599 4,775,758 5,253,334

CIP- Capital Projects 2,405,985 2,405,985 2,405,985 2,405,985 2,405,985

4 ~ Delay Capital Projects (1,405,985) (800,000) (800,000) 0 0

     Total expense 40,455,469 42,509,485 44,216,074 46,855,788 48,523,586

Net change in fund balance (1,212,888) (1,407,693) (1,164,776) (1,760,256) (1,284,435)

Available Beginning Fund Balance 9,813,873 10,100,985 8,693,291 7,528,515 5,768,259

5 ~ Increase Available Cashflow 1,500,000

Projected Rolling Fund Balance 10,100,985 8,693,291 7,528,515 5,768,259 4,483,825

*See Budget Balancing explanation on next page 

**Maintains a $4M Cashflow Reserve in addition to the Restricted Reserves of $1.8M 

OPTION 2 - BUDGET BALANCING 

Delay Capital Projects, Utilize Existing Attrition Savings, NO DE- TABOR request 

2023 OAB BUDGET BALANCING OPTIONS PAGE 8Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

18 of 43



1 ~ In this option, PPLD would request a DE-TABOR Ballot measure and the district continues to experience the on-going and cumulative 

  loss of core revenue

2 ~ Extensive analysis on attrition savings due to turnover and unfilled positions results in an additional $440,000 of attrition savings that

  can be captured without reducing any current programs or services

3 ~ PPLD does not experience one-time expense for investment in a DE-TABOR Ballot Measure

4 ~ Includes delay of certain Capital Projects that would not impact operations or result in increased future cost

5 ~ The reduction to the base budget of $1.8M alleviates related monthly cashflow burden and allows for an additional $1.5M of one-time fund 

   balance to be used for balancing future budget years

* This option, while providing relief in the short term, does not address the budget deficits long term and illustrates that costs will only

  continue to outpace the available revenue

2023 Original Adopted Budget

Budget Balancing Options

Option 2 Explanation

2023 OAB BUDGET BALANCING OPTIONS PAGE 9Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

19 of 43



2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

REVENUES

Tax Revenues 37,321,549 39,115,714 40,997,487 42,971,186 45,041,342

1 ~ Potential TABOR Changes - Voter Approved 0 0 0 0 0

Total Tax Revenue 37,321,549 39,115,714 40,997,487 42,971,186 45,041,342

Other Revenue 1,921,032 1,986,078 2,053,811 2,124,347 2,197,809

     Total Revenue 39,242,581 41,101,792 43,051,298 45,095,533 47,239,151

EXPENSES

GF- Personnel Expense (3%) 21,989,076 22,648,749 23,328,211 24,028,058 24,748,899

2 ~ Utilize Existing Attrition Savings (440,000) (440,000) (250,000) 0 0

GF- Operating Expense (3%) 14,318,295 14,747,844 15,190,279 15,645,987 16,115,367

3 ~ Invest in Ballot Measure 0 0 0 0 0

ISF- Medical Claims (10%) 3,588,098 3,946,908 4,341,599 4,775,758 5,253,334

CIP- Capital Projects 2,405,985 2,405,985 2,405,985 2,405,985 2,405,985

4 ~ Delay Capital Projects 0 0 0 0 0

5-7 ~ Program and Service Reductions (743,695) (743,695) (743,695) (743,695) (743,695)

     Total expense 41,117,759 42,565,790 44,272,379 46,112,093 47,779,891

Net change in fund balance (1,875,178) (1,463,998) (1,221,081) (1,016,561) (540,740)

Available Beginning Fund Balance 9,813,873 8,938,695 7,474,696 6,253,615 5,237,054

8 ~ Increase Available Cashflow 1,000,000

Projected Rolling Fund Balance 8,938,695 7,474,696 6,253,615 5,237,054 4,696,315

*See Budget Balancing explanation on next page 

**Maintains a $4.5M Cashflow Reserve in addition to the Restricted Reserves of $1.8M 

OPTION 3 - BUDGET BALANCING 

Program and Service Reductions and Eliminations 

2023 OAB BUDGET BALANCING OPTIONS PAGE 10Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

20 of 43



 

1 ~ In this option, PPLD would not request a DE-TABOR Ballot measure and the district continues to experience the on-going and cumulative 

2 ~ Extensive analysis on attrition savings due to turnover and unfilled positions results in an additional $440,000 of attrition savings that

3 ~ PPLD does not experience one-time expense for investment in a DE-TABOR Ballot Measure

4 ~ PPLD would not delay Capital Projects; without additional revenue this would impact ability to maintain programs and services at current levels

5 ~ All Public Services budgets had reductions to supplies, memberships and trainings.  Branch locations had reductions to supplies and 

Family Place supplies

6 ~ Programmatic cuts include the elimination of:

  a) Adult Services: All Pikes Peak Reads (APPR), fantasy football, movement classes, first aid kits

  b) Creative Services: Maker in Residence, Poet Laureate (if outside funding not continued), Youth Laureate service collaboration programs, 

community builds, PPLD sponsored Food Industry Training Cohort (not Adult Ed Required), Artist of the Knight, Story Project, and 

Pikes Peak Live

  c) Collection Management: Freegal (e-music), PressReader, and Dear Reader .

  d) Equity, Diversity, and Inclusion: EDI programming line (used to cover consultant and implementation across district)

  e) Family and Children's Services:  Suumer contract employee and APPR

  f) Young Adult Services: Work study, interns, summer programming, and APPR

2023 Original Adopted Budget

Budget Balancing Options

Option 3 Explanation

  loss of core revenue

  can be captured without reducing any current programs or services

2023 OAB BUDGET BALANCING OPTIONS PAGE 11 12Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

21 of 43



Explanation continued:

 

7 ~ Programmatic cuts include the reduction as follows:

  a) Adult Education: Volunteer programming

  b) Adult Services: Summer Concerts in the Park, Shakespeare in the Park, Mountain of Author, Entrepreneur in Residence

  c) Creative Services:  Repair Cafes, take and makes, and general programming

  d) Collection Management: Processing supplies, adult audio visual, juvenile audio visual, book club, junior print books, junion nonfiction 

print books, reference books, hold ration line, autoship books, rapid reads, spanish language, e-books, processing fees, and periodicals.

  e) Equity, Diversity, and Inclusion: General programming

  f) Family and Children's Services: Educational Resource Center, general programming, summer reading party, summer performers, summer 

adventure grand prizes, homeschool programming, stem programming, MAKE programming, and tween programming

  g) Regional History and Geneology: General programming

  h) Young Adult Services: General programming, presenters, summer reading prizes, and snacks

8 ~ The reduction to the base budget of $1.2M alleviates related monthly cashflow burden and allows for an additional $1.0M of one-time fund 

* This option, while providing relief in the short term

  a) does not address the budget deficits long term and illustrates that costs will only continue to outpace available revenue

  b) permenently reduces current levels of Programming and Services until addition revenue is realized

  c) is not sustainable long term, as the Fund Balance continue to shrink with no growth

   balance to be used for balancing future budget years

2023 Original Adopted Budget

Budget Balancing Options

Option 3 Explanation

2023 OAB BUDGET BALANCING OPTIONS PAGE 11 12Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

22 of 43



BUDGET RESOLUTION 

OAB #2

OPTION 1* OPTION 2 OPTION 3

Tax Revenues 37,321,549 37,321,549 37,321,549

Potential TABOR Changes - Voter Approved 0 0 0

Total Tax Revenue 37,321,549 37,321,549 37,321,549

Other Revenue 1,921,032 1,921,032 1,921,032

     Total Revenue 39,242,581 39,242,581 39,242,581

GF- Personnel Expense (3%) 21,989,076 21,989,076 21,989,076

Utilize Existing Attrition Savings (440,000) (440,000) (440,000)

GF- Operating Expense (3%) 14,318,295 14,318,295 14,318,295

Invest in Ballot Measure 0 0 0

ISF- Medical Claims (10%) 3,588,098 3,588,098 3,588,098

CIP- Capital Projects 2,405,985 2,405,985 2,405,985

Delay Capital Projects (1,405,985) (1,405,985) 0

Program and Service Reductions 0 0 (743,695)

     Total expense 40,455,469 40,455,469 41,117,759

Net change in fund balance (1,212,888) (1,212,888) (1,875,178)

Available Beginning Fund Balance 9,813,873 9,813,873 9,813,873

Increase Available Cashflow 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,000,000

Projected Rolling Fund Balance 10,100,985 10,100,985 8,938,695

* Management Recommended

2023 BUDGET BALANCING OPTIONS

2023 BUDGET RESOLUTIONS ~ BASE BUDGET APPROVAL

BUDGET RESOLUTION 

OAB #1

2023 OAB BUDGET BALANCING OPTIONS PAGE 13Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

23 of 43



Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

24 of 43



Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

25 of 43



Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

26 of 43



Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

27 of 43



Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

28 of 43



Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

29 of 43



Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

30 of 43



Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

31 of 43



Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

32 of 43



Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

33 of 43



Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

34 of 43



Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

35 of 43



Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

36 of 43



Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

37 of 43



Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

38 of 43



Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

39 of 43



Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

40 of 43



Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

41 of 43



Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

42 of 43



Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
December 7, 2022

43 of 43


	AGENDA December 7, 2022
	CONSENT minutes Budget hearing November 16, 2022
	CONSENT minutes November 16, 2022
	DECISION 22-12-2 2022 midyear general fund
	DECISION 22-12-3 120722 2023 OAB Budget Balancing Options for Board-Budget Hearing #2 December 7 2022
	RECONSIDERATION Kitchen Disco packet for Board 120722



